The Board of Directors of the Cedar Falls Community School District in the County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, met in regular session pursuant to the laws and rules of said Board at the City of Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 5:30 p.m. The meeting was called to order by the President and the roll being called there were present Jeff Hassman in the chair, and the following named Directors: Dr. Allan Heisterkamp, Susie Hines, Jeff Orvis, Sasha Wohlpart, and Nate Gruber by teleconference. Others in attendance: Dr. Andrew Pattee, Superintendent, Pam Zeigler, Associate Superintendent, Denelle Gonnerman, Chief Financial Officer, Dr. Adrian Talbot, Executive Director of Human Resources, Tara Estep, Executive Director of Enrichment and Special Programs, Janelle Darst, Communication Director and also by teleconference: Brian Sanderman, Shane Geiselhart, Brant Carr, Matt Riemenschneider, Beth Forcum, and Joyce Coil.

President Hassman stated that a governmental body may conduct a meeting by electronic means only in circumstances where such a meeting in person is impossible or impractical and only if the governmental body provides public access to the conversation of the meeting to the extent reasonably possible. The place of the meeting is the place in which the communication originates and the minutes of the meeting shall include a statement explaining why the meeting in person was impossible or impractical as pursuant to Iowa Code 21.8. The reason for the meeting being held by electronic means: Due to COVID-19 and the recommendation by the CDC/Iowa Department of Public Health to social distance.

## Item No. 1 – Approval of the Following Consent Agenda Items:

Director Orvis moved and Director Wohlpart seconded the motion to approve the following items:

- 1. The agenda of the September 28, 2020 Board of Education meeting
- 2. Approval of the September 14, 2020 Board of Education minutes
- 3. Approval of the bills as presented for payment and reviewed by Director Sasha Wohlpart
- 4. Approval of Open Enrollment requests
- 5. Approval of Upper Iowa Field Experience/Student Teaching Agreement

# **Open Enrollment Report**

September 28, 2020

Brantley John Brunson	1st Grade
Current resident district:	Cedar Falls
District requested:	Janesville
Effective date:	2020-2021 – C
Bryson James Brunson	4th Grade
Current resident district:	Cedar Falls
District requested:	Janesville
Effective date:	2020-2021 – C
Mariah Garcia	10th Grade
Current resident district:	Cedar Falls
District requested:	Waterloo
Effective date:	2020-2021 – C

Directors voting in favor of the motion: Gruber, Hassman, Heisterkamp, Hines, Orvis and Wohlpart. Those voting "no" none. Motion carried.

### Item No. 2 - Public Comment

No public comments.

### Item No. 3 - Communications

Janelle Darst reported on the following events from the District newsletter:

- Elementary specials in classrooms
- Safety patrol
- Peet Junior High congratulations on world studies
- Holmes Junior High recycling team and lunch crew
- The Hi-Line Online Pod cast

- Congratulations to fall athletics
- Channel 15 live streaming women's swimming and diving
- Tiger Booster Club and Hurts Donuts
- Return to Learn Website
- Virtual Campus Facebook page

## Item No. 4 - Update on Cedar Falls High School

President Hassman introduced Brian Sanderman, InVision Architecture. Mr. Sanderman reviewed the current progress and process of the new high school. In addition, he provided a "virtual" tour of the new high school interior ending with a review of the established timeline. Brant Carr, Pre-Construction Manager at Story Construction reported on the budget and bidding process. Shane Geiselhart, Project Manager reported on the structural build for the project. After an extensive question and answer period, the Board thanked the presenters.

Dr. Pattee thanked the presenters, the City of Cedar Falls, University of Northern Iowa, and Cedar Falls Utilities for ongoing their partnerships.

### Item No. 5 – Update on Virtual Campus

Tara Estep, Executive Director of Enrichment and Special Programs and Virtual Campus Administrator, reported on the Virtual Campus. Mrs. Estep stated there are 960 students in the virtual program in grades Kindergarten  $-12^{th}$  grade. Mrs. Estep shared some of the many resources supplied to staff and students in our virtual campus to include iPads, Chromebooks, hot spots, monitors, webcams, and instructional resources. Learning and flexibility is the name of the game. The curriculum being taught is the District's curriculum, where some Districts have gone with outside programs. Mrs. Estep stated online learning is characterized by a structured environment to enhance and expand educational opportunities and in order for this program to be successful parent help is needed. Mrs. Estep shared feedback and survey results. She concluded her presentation by thanking all the staff for all their amazing work and dedication to the Cedar Falls District. In addition, Director Gruber thanked Mrs. Estep and the staff for such a positive experience for his own children during this unprecedented time. After an extensive question and answer session the Board thanked Mrs. Estep and her staff.

### Item No. 6 - Secretary's Monthly Financial Report

Mrs. Gonnerman reviewed the August 2020 monthly balances for the general fund, schoolhouse, student activity and food service. President Hassman reported the report would be filed subject to audit.

### Item No. 7 - Approval of the Second Reading of Board Policies

Dr. Pattee presented on policy revisions. After discussion, Director Hines moved and Director Heisterkamp seconded the motion that the Cedar Falls Community School Board of Education approve the second reading of Board Policies 202.0 Board of Directors Conflict of Interest, 401.2 Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action, 401.3 Harassment, 500 Objectives for Equal Educational Opportunities for Students and 504.5 (504.5.1) Anti-Bullying/Harassment: Students. Directors voting in favor of the motion: Gruber, Hassman, Heisterkamp, Hines, Orvis and Wohlpart. Those voting "no" none. Motion carried.

### Policy Title:

## Board of Directors' Conflict of Interest Code No. 202.0

Board members must be able to make decisions objectively. It is a conflict of interest for a board member to receive direct compensation from the school district, unless exempted in law or this policy, for anything other than reimbursement of actual and necessary expenses, including travel, incurred in the performance of official duties. A board member will not act as an agent for a school textbook or school supply company during the board member's term of office. It will not be a conflict of interest for board members to receive compensation from the school district for contracts for the to purchase goods or services which benefits a board member, or to compensation for part-time or temporary employment which benefits a board member, if the benefit to the board member does not exceed \$6,000 in a fiscal year or if the contracts are made by the board, upon competitive bid in writing, publicly invited and opened.

The conflict of interest provisions do not apply to a contract that is a bond, note or other obligation of a school corporation if the contract is not acquired directly from the school corporation, but is acquired in a transaction with a third party, who may or may not be the original underwriter, purchaser, or obligee of the contract, or to a contract in which a director has an interest solely by reason of employment if the contract was made by competitive bid, in writing, publicly invited and opened, or if the remuneration for employment will not be directly affected as a result of the contract and duties of employment do not involve any of the preparation or procurement of any part of the contract. The competitive bid section of the conflict of interest provision does not apply to a contract for professional services not customarily competitively bid.

It will also be a conflict of interest for a board member to engage in any outside employment or activity which is in conflict with the board member's official duties and responsibilities. In determining whether outside employment or activity of a board member creates a conflict of interest, situations in which an unacceptable conflict of interest is deemed to exist includes, but are not limited to, any of the following:

- (1) The outside employment or activity involves the use of the school district's time, facilities, equipment and supplies or the use of the school district badge, uniform, business card or other evidence of office to give the board member or member of the board member's immediate family an advantage or pecuniary benefit that is not available to other similarly situated members or classes of members of the general public. For purposes of this section, a person is not "similarly situated" merely by being related to a board member.
- (2) The outside employment or activity involves the receipt of, promise of, or acceptance of more or other consideration by the board member or a member of the board member's immediate family from anyone other than the state or the school district for the performance of any act that the board member would be required or expected to perform as part of the board member's regular duties or during the hours in which the board member performs service or work for the school district.
- (3) The outside employment or activity is subject to the official control, inspection, review, audit, or enforcement authority of the board member, during the performance of the board member's duties of office or employment.

If the outside employment or activity is employment or activity in (1) or (2) above, the board member must cease the employment of or activity. If employment falls under (3), then the board member must:

- Cease the outside employment or activity; or
- Publicly disclose the existence of the conflict and refrain from taking any official action or performing any official duty that would detrimentally affect or create a benefit for the outside employment or activity. Official action or official duty includes, but is not limited to, participating in any vote, taking affirmative action to influence any vote, or providing any other official service or thing that is not available generally to members of the public in order to further the interests of the outside employment or activity.

It is the responsibility of each board member to be aware of an actual or potential conflict of interest. It is also the responsibility of each board member to take the action necessary to eliminate such a conflict of interest. Should a conflict of interest arise, a board member should not participate in any action relating to the issue from which the conflict arose.

Policy Title: Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action Code No. 401.2

### Selection for Employment and Assignments

The Cedar Falls Community School District will select for employment qualified applicants for each position without improper discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, ethnic background, age, disability, or genetic information. Persons with disabilities who can perform the essential functions of an assignment with or without reasonable accommodations shall be considered qualified applicants. The District shall take affirmative action in the recruitment, appointment, assignment, and advancement of personnel to accomplish the goals of equal employment opportunity. In keeping with the law, the District shall consider the veteran status of applicants.

### **Employment Conditions**

The Cedar Falls Community School District will not unlawfully discriminate against any individual with respect to compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment because of such individual's race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, ethnic background, age, disability, or genetic information.

### **Complaints of Discrimination**

Any applicant or employee alleging discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, ethnic background, age, disability, or genetic information may follow the complaint procedures set forth in Policy 401.4. The complainant may bypass any step of the complaint procedure where the person to whom the complaint is to be lodged is the alleged perpetrator. The complainant may file the initial complaint with the compliance officer, whose decision may be appealed to the superintendent or designee. Inquiries or complaints may also be directed to federal and state agencies including the Iowa Civil Rights Commission, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, and the Office of Civil Rights of the United States Department of Education.

The complainant may be required to complete a complaint form and turn over copies of evidence of discrimination including, but not limited to, recordings, memoranda, letters, and pictures. The investigator shall promptly commence an investigation and proceed to completion. Both the complainant and the alleged perpetrator will be given an opportunity to give a statement. A written investigation report shall be completed, and a summary of the report (including a finding that the complaint was founded, unfounded, or inconclusive) will be forwarded to the complainant and to the alleged perpetrator.

## **Compliance Officer**

The executive director of human resources shall be designated as the District's compliance officer to insure that applicants and employees are treated in accordance with this policy. In the event the executive director of human resources is the alleged perpetrator, the associate superintendent for teaching and learning shall be the alternate compliance officer. The compliance officer shall also be responsible for coordinating the preparation, implementation, evaluation, and updating of written equal employment opportunity and affirmative action plans, with systematic input from diverse racial/ethnic groups, women, men, and persons with disabilities.

## Confidentiality

The right of confidentiality, both of the complainant and of the alleged perpetrator, will be respected to the extent possible consistent with the District's legal obligations to investigate allegations of misconduct and to take corrective action when misconduct has occurred. Complaints of discrimination shall not be filed in the complainant's personnel file.

### **No Retaliation**

No person shall retaliate against another person because the person has filed a discrimination complaint, assisted or participated in an investigation, or has opposed language or conduct that violates this policy, as long as the participation or action was done in good faith.

## **Corrective Action**

The District will take action to halt any improper discrimination or retaliation and will take other appropriate corrective actions to remedy all violations of this policy. This may include disciplinary measures, including discharge of a perpetrator.

### Notice

In order to effectively communicate and interpret the District's policy to all levels of the administration and to all other employees, applicants, educational agencies and to the public, a statement of the District's policy shall be distributed to all applicants for employment and shall be disseminated annually to employees, students, parents, and recruitment sources. District employees involved in the hiring or supervision of personnel shall be trained on proper equal employment opportunity procedures.

## Title IX: Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited

The District has separate procedures for reports or complaints of sexual harassment governed by Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972. The policy governing such instances is Code No. 504.5.2: Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited. Procedures for addressing such reports or complaints are available as follows:

Electronically on the District website at www.cfschools.org/about-us/TitleIX

Paper copies are available in the administrative office and school counselor's office at each school as well as in the Human Resource Department in the Robinson Administration Center.

Policy Title:

Harassment

Code No. 401.3

## Purpose

The District is committed to promoting positive intercultural, intergroup relationships. The District, therefore, prohibits acts of intolerance or harassment toward others because of race, color, religion, creed, ethnic background, national origin, age, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information, or other factors that are likewise not reasonably related to the individual's employment.

Employees are expected to conduct themselves at all times in a manner which fosters an atmosphere of tolerance, mutual respect, and collaboration. The following will not be tolerated: verbal, nonverbal, physical or other acts, gestures, statements, and the like which place another employee in reasonable fear of harm to the employee or his/her property; has a detrimental effect on the employee's physical, emotional, or mental health; has the effect of substantially interfering with the employee's work performance; or creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile environment.

## **Sexual Harassment**

*General* – It is the policy of the Cedar Falls Community School District to maintain a learning and working environment that is free from sexual harassment. Because of the District's strong disapproval of offensive or inappropriate sexual behavior at work, all employees, officials and visitors must avoid any action or conduct which could be perceived as sexual harassment. It shall be a violation of this policy for any employee, official or visitor of the District to harass others through conduct or communications of a sexual nature as defined below.

*Definition* – Sexual harassment shall consist of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual acts or favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature where:

- 1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment;
- 2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting that individual; or
- 3. Such conduct is so sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that it has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's employment or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive employment environment.

Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to the following:

- verbal or written harassment or abuse
- pressure for sexual activity
- repeated remarks to or about a person with sexual or demeaning implications
- unwelcome touching
- suggesting or demanding sexual involvement accompanied by implied or explicit threats concerning one's job
- the telling or showing of offensive jokes and stories
- display of sexually graphic pictures

## **Harassment Complaint Procedures**

Any employee who alleges improper harassment by any person in the District may follow the complaint procedures set forth in Policy 401.4. The complainant may bypass any step of the complaint procedure where the person to whom the complaint is to be lodged is the alleged perpetrator. The complainant may file the initial complaint with the compliance officer, whose decision may be appealed to the superintendent or designee. Inquiries or complaints may also be directed to federal and state agencies including the Iowa Civil Rights Commission, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, and the Office of Civil Rights of the United States Department of Education.

The complainant may be required to complete a harassment complaint form and to turn over copies of evidence of harassment, including, but not limited to, letters, recordings, and pictures. The investigator shall promptly commence an investigation and proceed to completion. Both the complainant and the alleged perpetrator will be given an opportunity to give a statement. A written investigation report shall be completed, and a summary of the report "including a finding that the complaint was founded, unfounded, or inconclusive" will be forwarded to the complainant and to the alleged perpetrator.

## **Compliance Officer**

The executive director of human resources shall be designated as the District's compliance officer to insure that applicants and employees are treated in accordance with this policy. In the event the executive director of human resources is the alleged perpetrator, the director of secondary education shall be the alternate compliance officer.

### Confidentiality

The right to confidentiality, both of the complainant and of the alleged perpetrator, will be respected to the extent possible consistent with the District's legal obligations to investigate allegations of misconduct and to take corrective action when misconduct has occurred. Complaints of harassment shall not be filed in the complainant's personnel file.

### No Retaliation

No person shall retaliate against another person because the person has filed a harassment complaint, assisted or participated in an investigation, or has opposed language or conduct that violates this policy, as long as the participation or action was done in good faith.

### **Corrective Actions**

The District will take action to halt any improper harassment or retaliation and will take other appropriate corrective actions to remedy all violations of this policy. This may include disciplinary measures, including discharge of a perpetrator.

## Notification

Notice of this policy will be circulated on an annual basis and incorporated into staff handbooks.

## **Staff Development**

Periodic training shall be provided all staff regarding the nature and prohibition of harassment.

## Title IX: Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited

The District has separate procedures for reports or complaints of sexual harassment governed by Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972. The policy governing such instances is Code No. 504.5.2: *Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited*. Procedures for addressing such reports or complaints are available as follows:

Electronically on the District website at <a href="https://www.cfschools.org/about-us/TitleIX">www.cfschools.org/about-us/TitleIX</a>

Paper copies are available in the administrative office and school counselor's office at each school as well as in the Human Resource Department in the Robinson Administration Center.

Policy Title:	<b>Objectives for Equal Educational</b>	Code No. 500
	<b>Opportunities for Students</b>	

This series of the board policy manual is devoted to the board's goals and objectives for assisting the students of the school district in obtaining an education. Each student will have an opportunity to obtain an education in compliance with the policies in this series.

It is the goal of the board to develop a healthy social, intellectual, emotional, and physical self-concept in the students enrolled in the school district. Each student attending school will have the opportunity to use it and its education program and services as a means for self-improvement and individual growth. In so doing, the students are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that assures each student the same opportunity.

The board supports the delivery of the education program and services to students free of discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, marital status, socio-economic status, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity or disability. This concept of equal educational opportunity serves as a guide for the board and employees in making decisions relating to school district facilities, employment, selection of educational materials, equipment, curriculum, and regulations affecting students.

Board policies, rules and regulations affect students while they are on school district property or on property within the jurisdiction of the school district; while on school owned and/or operated school or chartered vehicles; while attending or engaged in school activities; and while away from school grounds if misconduct will directly affect the good order, efficient management and welfare of the school district.

Board policy refers to the term "parents" in many of the policies. The term parents for purposes of this policy manual means the legal parents, the legal guardian or custodian of a student, and students who have reached the age of majority or are otherwise considered an adult by law.

### Nondiscrimination

No student in the school district shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in district programs on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, religion, marital status, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, or socio-economic status. The district prohibits unlawful discrimination against students, including discriminatory harassment on the basis of any protected class identified in state or federal civil rights laws, which has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive education environment, unreasonably interferes with academic performance or affects educational opportunities.

### Sexual Harassment

It is the policy of the school district to maintain a learning environment that is free from sexual harassment. All employees, visitors and students must avoid any action or conduct which could reasonably be perceived as sexual harassment. It shall be a violation of this policy for any person to harass a student through conduct or communications of a sexual nature as defined in this policy. "Sexual harassment" shall consist of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual acts or favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when (i) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of the student's educational opportunities or benefits; (ii) submission to or rejection of such conduct by a student is used as the basis for educational decisions affecting that student; or (iii) such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with a student's education by creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to the following: requests or pressure for sexual activity; unwelcome touching; other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, such as inappropriate jokes, symbols, signs or posters of a sexual nature; repeated remarks to or about a person with sexual or demeaning implications.

## **Complaint Procedure**

Any person alleging a violation of this policy may make a report or file a formal complaint by contacting one of the District's designated Equity Coordinators:

Equity Coordinator: Students	Equity Coordinator: Staff
Ms. Tara Estep, Executive Director of Enrichment	Dr. Adrian Talbot, Executive Director of Human
and Special Programs	Resources
Cedar Falls Community School District	Cedar Falls Community School District
1002 West First Street	1002 West First Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613	Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Phone: 319-553-3000	Phone: 319-553-3000
Email: <u>tara.estep@cfschools.org</u>	Email: Adrian.talbot@cfschools.org

The complainant may be required to complete a written complaint form and to turn over copies of evidence of discrimination including, but not limited to, letters, emails, tapes, signs, and pictures. The complainant shall receive assistance in completing the complaint form as needed.

The equity coordinator shall designate an investigator to promptly and reasonably investigate the complaint, who shall generally be the building administrator or designee. In the event the investigator is the alleged perpetrator, or otherwise has a conflict of interest, an alternate investigator shall be designated. The investigator shall commence an investigation and proceed to completion no later than 30 days following receipt of the complaint. If the investigator needs more time to process the complaint, he/she shall notify the parties and keep them apprised of the status of the investigation. Both the complainant and the alleged perpetrator will be given an opportunity to be interviewed or give a statement. Witnesses may also be interviewed. District employees, students and volunteers shall fully and fairly cooperate in the investigation. The investigation shall be confidential to the extent consistent with the District's legal obligations and the necessity to investigate allegations of misconduct and take corrective action when this conduct has occurred.

The investigator shall prepare a written report of findings and conclusions, which shall be submitted to the equity coordinator. If, after investigation, a student is found to be in violation of this policy, the student shall be disciplined by appropriate measures, which may include suspension and expulsion. If, after investigation, a school employee is found to be in violation of this policy, the employee shall be disciplined by appropriate measures, which may include termination. If, after investigation, a school volunteer is found to be in violation of this policy, the volunteer shall be subject to appropriate measures, which may include exclusion from school grounds. Other corrective actions may be taken as appropriate.

No person shall retaliate against a student or other person because the student or other person has filed a discrimination complaint, assisted or participated in an investigation, or has opposed language or conduct that violates this policy, as long as the participation or action was done in good faith. Persons who engage in retaliation or who knowingly file false complaints or give false statements in an investigation shall be subject to discipline up to and including suspension, expulsion, or termination of employment/service.

Inquiries by students regarding compliance with equal educational opportunity and affirmative action laws and policies, including but not limited to complaints of discrimination, may also be directed in writing to the Iowa Department of Education, and/or the Iowa Civil Rights Commission. This inquiry or complaint to the federal or state office may be submitted instead of, or in addition to, an inquiry or complaint at the local level.

The Board recognizes that conduct which is alleged to violate this policy may violate other policies as well. Therefore, to the extent that a report or complaint of discrimination involves an allegation of sexual or other harassment toward a student, the matter will also be processed in accordance with Code No. 504.4 regarding abuse of students and/or Code No. 504.5 504.5.1 regarding antibullying/harassment, as applicable.

## Title IX: Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited

The District has separate procedures for reports or complaints of sexual harassment governed by Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972. The policy governing such instances is Code No. 504.5.2: *Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited*. Procedures for addressing such reports or complaints are available as follows:

Electronically on the District website at www.cfschools.org/about-us/TitleIX

Paper copies are available in the administrative office and school counselor's office at each school as well as in the Human Resource Department in the Robinson Administration Center.

Code No. 504.5.1

## Policy Title: Anti-Bullying/Harassment: Students

Harassment and bullying are against federal, state and local policy, and are not tolerated by the board. The board is committed to providing a safe and civil school environment in which all members of the school community are treated with dignity and respect. To that end, the board has in place policies, procedures, and practices that are designed to reduce and eliminate bullying and harassment as well as processes and procedures to deal with incidents of bullying and harassment. Bullying and harassment of students by students, staff, and/or volunteers, who have regular significant contact with students, will not be tolerated in the school or school district.

The Board of Education prohibits harassment, bullying, hazing, or any other victimization of a student based on any of the following actual or perceived traits or characteristics of a student, including but not limited to, age, color, creed, national origin, race, religion, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, physical attributes, physical or mental ability or disability, ancestry, political party preference, political belief, socioeconomic status, or familial status. (Pursuant to Code No. 500.0) The District also prohibits unlawful discrimination against its students, including discriminatory harassment on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, marital status, religion, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, socio-economic status, or any other protected class identified in state or federal civil rights laws, which has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive education environment, unreasonably interferes with a student's academic performance, or affects a student's educational opportunities.

Pursuant to Code 504.5.2 *Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited* the District has separate procedures for reports or complaints of sexual harassment governed by Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972. The policy governing such instances is Code No. 504.5.2: *Discrimination and Harassment Based on Sex Prohibited*. Procedures for addressing such reports or complaints are available as follows:

### Electronically on the District website at www.cfschools.org/about-us/TitleIX

Paper copies are available in the administrative office and school counselor's office at each school as well as in the Human Resource Department in the Robinson Administration Center.)

This policy is in effect while students are on property within the jurisdiction of the board; while on school-owned, leased or school-operated vehicles; while attending or engaged in school-sponsored activities; and while away from school grounds if the misconduct directly affects the good order, efficient management and welfare of the school or school district.

If, after an investigation, a student is found to be in violation of this policy, the student shall be disciplined by appropriate measures including, but not limited to, suspension, exclusion, and expulsion. If, after an investigation, an employee is found to be in violation of this policy, the employee shall be disciplined by appropriate measures including, but not limited to, termination of employment. If, after an investigation, a volunteer is found to be in violation of this policy, the volunteer shall be disciplined by appropriate measures including, but not limited to, exclusion from school grounds. All reports of bullying/harassment will be documented and reported to the Iowa Department of Education as required by law.

Harassment and bullying mean any electronic, written, verbal, or physical act or conduct which is based on any actual or perceived trait or characteristic and which creates an objectively hostile school environment that meets one or more of the following conditions:

- Places the person in reasonable fear of harm to the person or property
- Has a substantially detrimental effect on the person's physical or mental health
- Has the effect of substantially interfering with the person's academic or work performance, or
- Has the effect of substantially interfering with the person's ability to participate in, provide or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school

Electronic includes, but is not limited to, communication via electronic mail, internet-based communications, cell phones, electronic text messaging or similar technologies.

Harassment and bullying may include, but are not limited to, any of the following behaviors and circumstances:

- Verbal, nonverbal, physical or written harassment, bullying, hazing, or other victimization that has the purpose or effect of causing injury, discomfort, fear, or suffering to the targeted student
- Implied or explicit threats concerning one's grades, achievements, property, etc. that have the purpose or effect of causing injury, discomfort, fear, or suffering to the targeted student
- Demeaning jokes, stories, or activities directed at the student that have the purpose or effect of causing injury, discomfort, fear, or suffering to the targeted student
- Repeated remarks of a demeaning nature that have the purpose or effect of causing injury discomfort, fear, or suffering to the targeted student
- Unreasonable interference with a person's performance or creation of an intimidating, offensive, or hostile environment

Sexual harassment means unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

- Submission to the conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of the student's education or benefits.
- Submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the student is used as the basis for academic decisions affecting that student.
- The conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with the student's education by creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive education environment. In situations between students and school officials, faculty, staff, or volunteers who have contact with students, bullying and harassment may also include the following behaviors:
- Requiring that a student submit to bullying or harassment by another student, either explicitly or implicitly, as a term or condition of the targeted student's education or participation in school programs or activities
- Requiring submission to or rejection of such conduct as a basis for decisions affecting the student.

School employees, volunteers, parents or guardians, and students will assist with the enforcement of this policy, including, but not limited; to assisting with educational and preventative measures, reporting, and investigations of harassment or bullying. Any person who promptly, reasonably, and in good faith reports an incident of bullying or harassment under this policy to a school official or supervisor shall be immune from civil or criminal liability relating to such report and to the person's participation in any administrative,

judicial, or other proceeding relating to the report. Individuals who knowingly file a false complaint or give false statements in an investigation may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

Retaliation against any person who filed a bullying or harassment complaint or who assisted or participated in a bullying or harassment investigation or proceeding is also prohibited. Any person found to have retaliated in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

The school or school district will promptly and reasonably investigate allegations of bullying or harassment. The superintendent or designee will be responsible for handling all complaints by students alleging bullying or harassment. Investigators will consider the totality of circumstances presented in determining whether conduct objectively constitutes harassment or bullying. The District will take action to halt any improper discrimination, harassment or bullying and will take other appropriate corrective actions, including disciplinary measures which may include discharge, suspension, expulsion, or exclusion of a perpetrator to remedy all violations of this policy. It is the responsibility of the superintendent or designee, in conjunction with the investigator and principals, to develop procedures regarding this policy. The Board will annually communicate this policy. The policy may be publicized by the following means:

- Inclusion in the student handbook
- Inclusion in the employee handbook
- Inclusion in registration materials
- Inclusion on the school or district websites
- Readily accessible in the principal and counselor offices
- Other

### Item No. 8 - Approval of Superintendent's Contract

President Hassman and the Board thanked Dr. Pattee for all his work in leading the District during these challenging times and appreciates all he does as the District's Superintendent.

Director Wohlpart moved and Director Orvis seconded the motion that the Cedar Falls Community School District Board of Education issues a total package increase of 2.87% beginning July 1, 2020 for Dr. Andrew R. Pattee, Superintendent for the 2020-21 contract. Directors voting in favor of the motion: Gruber, Hassman, Heisterkamp, Hines, Orvis and Wohlpart. Those voting "no" none. Motion carried.

## Item No. 9 - Superintendent's Report

Dr. Pattee reported on the following:

- October 12, 2020 Certified Annual Report (CAR)
- IASB State Convention November 18-19, 2020, will be virtual
- Delegate assembly and designate a delegate
- Book Study "How to be Antiracist" by Ibram X. Kendi

### Item No. 10- Questions, Comments, and Concerns

Director Orvis inquired about enrollment. Dr. Pattee stated looking at the numbers we are up approximately 70 students, but numbers can fluctuate.

Director Gruber inquired about virtual learning for inclement weather days. Dr. Pattee reported the district is reviewing the guidelines provided by the Department of Education.

Dr. Heisterkamp thanked Tara and the team on the Equity Committee for their work to create surveys to solicit input from students in these areas.

Dr. Heisterkamp thanked the class of 1970 for their generous gift to the Cedar Falls Schools Foundation.

### Item No. 11 – Adjournment

Director Orvis moved and Director Heisterkamp seconded the motion to adjourn. Directors voting in favor of the motion: Gruber, Hassman, Heisterkamp, Hines, Orvis and Wohlpart. Those voting "no" none. Motion carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:58 p.m.

Secretary

President